
 
AGENDA OF THE 

UTAH STATE BUILDING BOARD MEETING   
Wednesday, May 1, 2019 

State Capitol  
350 N. State Street 

Room 250 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114 

9:00 am 
 

(Action) 1. Building Board: Oath of Office for New Members 
 
(Action) 2. Approval of Minutes from the April 3, 2019 Building Board Meeting 
 
(Action) 3. DFCM: State Facility Energy Efficiency Fund Loan Request for the State Mail and          

            Distribution Services Warehouse Lighting Upgrade 
 
(Action) 4. University of Utah: Request for the Biomedical Polymers Research Building Lab           

            Remodel (Non-State Funded) 
 
(Information) 5. Weber State University: Update on the Ogden Campus Outdoor Recreation Center       

            (Non-State Funded) 
 
(Information) 6. Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 
 
(Information) 7. Administrative Report for DFCM 
 
  8. Future Agenda Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice of Special Accommodation During Public Meetings - In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
individuals needing special accommodations (including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should 
notify Patty Yacks 538-3238 (TDD 538-3696) at least three days prior to the meeting.  This information and all other Utah State 
Building Board information is available on our website at: https://das.utah.gov/building-board/ 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Director  
Date: May 1, 2019 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the April 3, 2019 Building Board Meeting 

 

Attached for review and approval are the minutes from the April 3, 2019 Building Board meeting. 
. 

 
 



Utah State Building Board 
 

 

 

MEETING 
 

April 3, 2019 
 
 

 

 
MINUTES 

Members in Attendance:  
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Jeff Reddoor, Director 
Mike Kelley 
Lisa Barrager 
Joe Burgess 
Wendell Morse 
Gordon Snow 
 
Guests in Attendance: 
Patty Yacks   Building Board 
Mike Smith   Building Board 
Tani Downing  Department of Administrative Services 
Ken Hansen   Department of Administrative Services 
Darrell Hunting  Department of Administrative Services 
Nick Radulovich  Department of Administrative Services 
Scott Whitney  Department of Administrative Services 
Greg Peay   Department of Corrections  
Tyson Walker  Department of Human Services 
Taylor Kauffman  Governor's Office of Management and Budget 
LTC Wolff   Utah National Guard 
Senator Cullimore  Utah State Legislature 
Sid Pawar   AJC Architects 
Kailie Fennell  Arch Nexus 
Steve Kieffer   Big-D Construction 
Jonathan Hickerson  EDA 
Ellen Parrish   Method Studio 
Heather Knighton  MHTN Architects 
Eric Tholen   Michael Baker 
Malin Francis  Salt Lake Community College 
Bob Askerlund  Salt Lake Community College 
Tiger Funk   Southern Utah University 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2019 
Page 2 

 

Adam Young   Spectrum Engineers 
Ken Nye   University of Utah 
Ben Berrett   Utah State University 
Rich Amon   Utah System of Higher Education 
Mark Halverson  Weber State University 
William French  X Mission 
 
On Wednesday, April 3, 2019, the Utah State Building Board held a regularly scheduled meeting 
in Room 250 of the State Capitol.  The meeting was called into order at 9:00 A.M.  Chair Carnahan 
thanked Senator Cullimore and Director Downing for attending this meeting. 
 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MARCH 6, 2019 BOARD MEETING 

Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the December Building 
Board meeting.  None were brought forward. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Burgess moved to approve the minutes from the March 6, 2019 Board 

Meeting. The motion was second by Mr. Snow and passed unanimously. 
 

 UTAH NATIONAL GUARD: REQUEST TO NAME BUILDING 9500, AT ARMY 
GARRISON CAMP WILLIAMS AFTER SSG AARON R. BUTLER 

LTC Wolff presented a request to name Building 9500, at Army Garrison Camp Williams after fallen 
hero, SSG Aaron R. Butler, who was killed in action in Afghanistan on the evening of August 16, 
2017. Building 9500 is the new 19th Special Forces Readiness Center, currently under construction 

 
MOTION: Mr. Morse moved to approve Utah National Guard’s request to name Building 

9500, at Army Garrison Camp Williams after SSG Aaron R. Butler. The motion 
was second by Ms. Barrager and passed unanimously. 

 
 FIVE YEAR NOTICE OF REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION FOR RULE 

R23-23, HEALTH REFORM – HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE IN STATE 
CONTRACTS – IMPLEMENTATION. 

Mr. Kelley recommended that the Board authorize the filing of the Five Year Notice of Review and 
Statement of Continuation for Rule 23-23. Rule 23-23 establishes health insurance provisions in 
certain design and/or construction contracts. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to approve the Five Year Notice of Review and Statement of 

Continuation for Rule R23-23, Health Reform – Health Insurance Coverage in 
State Contracts - Implementation. The motion was second by Mr. Burgess and 
passed unanimously. 

 
 BUILDING BOARD: APPROVAL OF FY20 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT LIST 

Director Reddoor presented the finalized FY20 Capital Improvement List for review and approval 
by the Board. This year, the legislature approved a 1.2% increase (approximately $11M). In total, 
over $138.3M in capital improvement funds have been allocated to 356 projects. 60% of the funds 
have been allocated to higher-ed institutions and 40% have been allocated to State agencies. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Barrager moved to approve the FY20 Capital Improvement List.  The 

motion was second by Mr. Burgess and passed unanimously. 
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF UTAH & UTAH STATE 
UNIVERSITY 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2019 
Page 3 

 

Mr. Nye delivered the administrative report for the University of Utah. There were 14 professional 
service agreements and 3 construction contracts issued.  The report covers the period of February 
21, 2019 – April 3, 2019. 

 
Construction contracts awarded during this period consist of 

• Item 1; ACC Connector - This is a CM/GC contract awarded Jacobsen Construction. The 
initial contract amount is just for preconstruction services and the balance will be added 
by change order. 

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity 
• The closeout of two capital improvement projects resulted in the total transfer of 

$336,617.69 of residual funds to the Project Reserve Fund per statute. 
• No decreases 
• Balance: The balance increased to $791,120.20 which is within the range that we have 

been trying to maintain. As a result, we have now returned to a balance that is sustainable 
in supporting projects going forward 

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund 
• No increases 
• Decreases: Project 22147; Wasatch Drive Area Road Rebuild - This transfer of 

$69,336.23 covers the cost of an unforeseen condition regarding soil conditions which 
required over-excavation of soil and replacement with structured fill beyond what had been 
anticipated in the bidding documents. 

• Balance: Our analysis, using the same methodology employed by DFCM, indicates that 
the current balance of $2,592,337 is adequate to complete the projects that have been 
authorized and does not reflect an excess balance. 

 
Mr. Berrett delivered the administrative report for Utah State University. There were 7 professional 
service agreements and 12 construction contracts issued.  The report covers the period of 
February 22, 2019 – March 22, 2019. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund 

• No projects needed funds or contributed to the contingency reserve fund during this 
reporting period. Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s 
balance of $533,071 to be adequate. 
 

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity 
• Three projects needed funds and no projects contributed to the contingency reserve fund 

during this reporting period. Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this 
fund’s balance of $1,034,121 to be adequate. 

 
Current Delegated Projects List 

• Of USU’s 85 projects, 5 are pending, 24 are in the design/study phase, 36 are in 
construction, 13 are substantially complete and 7 are complete. The 7 projects completed 
during this period were Bike Racks/Site Furn FY17, Blue Square Parking Expansion, 
Emergency Generator FY14, HVAC Controls Upgrade FY15, Parking Lot Repair & Seal, 
USUE Infrastructure/Automation Upgrade and Utility Meter Upgrades FY16. 

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR DFCM  

Mr. Hunting delivered the administrative report for the Division of Facilities Construction 
Management.  The report covers the period of January 15, 2019 – February 15, 2019.  There are 
no significant updates to the lease report.  37 professional service agreements and 30 
construction contracts were issued. 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2019 
Page 4 

 

Construction Contracts: 
• Item #14: Ogden/Weber Tech College - Project Reserve Funds were used to cover this 

bid over budget. 
• Item #18: Snow College Lucy Phillips Classroom Building Roof Replacement - 

Unallocated roofing funds were used to cover this bid over budget. 
• Item #26: Ogden Schools for the Deaf and Blind Therapeutic Pool and Restroom 

Upgrades - Project Reserve Funds and agency funds were used to cover this bid over 
budget 

 
Contingency Reserve Fund, Capital Development started period with $5,907,375, had no 
increases and one decrease for $24,583, ending with a balance of $5,882,792. 

• Dixie State University Human Performance & Student Wellness Center - This transfer of 
$24,583 covers the State’s share of change order #5. 
  

Contingency Reserve Fund, Capital Improvement started period with $10,643,261, had no 
increases totaling and multiple 
decreases totaling $205,144, ending with a balance of $10,438,117. 

• Uintah Basin Technical College Roosevelt Building Piping Replacement - This transfer of 
$81,662 covers change order #2 

• Dixie State University Program Change Automotive Building to Facility Management - This 
transfer of $77,065 covers change order #1. 

 
Development Project Reserve Fund had two increases, ending with a balance of $2,550,953. The 
Improvement project reserve fund started with a balance of $5,023,416 had multiple transfers in 
of $636,513 and four transfers from the fund of $95,427, ending with a balance of $5,564,502. 

 
 CHANGES TO BUILDING BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 

Director Reddoor reviewed the Board’s responsibilities going forward after SB102 and HB349 
passed this legislative session.  Below is an overview of these changes that go into effect May 14, 
2019. 

Responsible to: 
• Approve rules DFCM brings to the Building Board 
• Make Building Board rules 
• Review and approve standards 
• Approve agency delegation 
• Review and prioritize state agency (excluding higher-ed) capital development projects 
• Review and recommend non-state funded capital development projects 
• Review and recommend higher-ed capital development projects 
• Prioritize higher-ed non-dedicated projects (but not dedicated projects) 
• Fit the higher-ed non-dedicated projects into the state-wide prioritization 
• Send 5-yr book to Legislature and Governor’s Office 
 
No longer responsible to: 
• Prioritize higher-ed dedicated capital projects 
• Managing capital improvement projects and process 
• Create 5-year book 

Mr. Hunting with DFCM and Mr. Amon with USHE have agreed to present how these bills effect 
their agency procedures in a future Board meeting. 
 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 2019 
Page 5 

 

 ADDITIONAL/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
This is the final meeting for Chair Carnahan and Mr. Snow.  The Board thanked these men for 
their dedication and guidance. The Board has submitted a list of potential candidates for member 
vacancies to the Governor’s Office. 

 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Mr. Snow moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was second by Chair 

Carnahan and passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 A.M. 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 4110 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3238 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Sarah Boll, DFCM High Performance Building Program Director 
 Cat Bartolini, DFCM Building Performance Project Manager 
 Bob Lund, DFCM Facility Manager 
Date: May 1, 2019 
Subject: DFCM: State Facility Energy Efficiency Fund Loan Request for the State 

Mail and Distribution Services Warehouse Lighting Upgrade 
 

In accordance with Utah Code section 63A-5-603(6) the attached State Facility Energy Efficiency 
Fund (SFEEF) loan application is being presented for review and approval. The proposed loan in the 
amount of $13,050 has been requested by Bob Lund, DFCM Facility Manager, to fund a lighting 
upgrade for the State Mail and Distribution Services Warehouse. The total estimated annual savings 
of $2,726 and simple payback 3.3 years (with incentives) meet the DFCM Building Performance 
Group’s expectations and guidelines for SFEEF funding. The loan application has been reviewed 
and approved by Sarah Boll, DFCM High Performance Building Program Director and we 
recommend that the loan be approved by the Building Board. 
 
The existing lighting at the State Mail Warehouse is antiquated and inefficient. In some areas, the 
lighting is insufficient and does not provide adequate illumination for the space. In addition, the 
current metal halide fixtures can take up to 30 minutes to turn back on during a power outage when 
the building switches to generator power. Bob Lund, the facility manager, has requested funding 
from the loan program to upgrade these fixtures to LEDs throughout the warehouse. This project will 
not only increase illumination throughout the space providing increased comfort, but will also 
generate significant energy cost savings and fix the issue of delayed illumination during power 
outages.  
 
Attachments: 
State Facility Energy Efficiency Fund Loan Application 
Rocky Mountain Power Savings Reports  
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of Utah 
State Facility Energy Efficiency Fund Loan Application 

 
A. State Agency:      
 
DFCM 
 
 
B. Building name & location:     
 
Utah Mail and Distribution Services 
250 N 1950 W SLC 84111 
       
C. Building description (use, seasonal variations, square footage): 
 
-State mail and distribution services 
-Approx. 40,000 sq ft 
 
 
D. Existing building systems and energy usage: 
 
-Replace existing lighting 400W Metal Halide fixtures with LEDs (30 fixtures) 
-Current fixtures take up to 30 minutes to turn back on when generator is switched on during power 
outage  
 
 
E. Project Description:  

Eligible Measure /  
Materials to be installed  

Estimated Cost of 
Measure 

Projected Annual Energy 
Savings 

Projected Annual 
Cost Savings 

LED Retrofit kit – High/Low Bay 185 W $13,050 40,129 kWh $2,726 
    
    
    

TOTAL    
     
F. Rebates and Incentives: 

Provider and type of rebate or incentive Estimated Amount of incentive 
Questar Gas  
Rocky Mountain Power $4,012.90 
TOTAL $4,012.90 

 
G. Payback 
 
-3.3 years w/ incentive 
-4.8 w/out incentive 
 
H. Description of energy costs savings measurement and verification: 
 
We will use BuildingOS to track and verify savings once the project is complete 
 
 



 
I. Commissioning procedures: 
 
N/A 
 
J. Other benefits to the environment, community, agency, or State of Utah 
 

- Lights will turn back on immediately during power outage 
- More comfortable work environment 
- Warehouse will be better lit 
- Lower energy consumption and costs 

 
 
K. Total eligible costs to be financed by this loan: 
Estimated costs:    $ 13,050 
Other funds to be used on project:    $ 
Total proposed loan amount:  $ 13,050 
 
 
L. Attachments 
 
-Rocky Mountain Power report and lighting tool  



Exhibit A

Print Date: 4/23/2019 State Mail RMP Lighting Tool and Report (1).xlsm 1  of 1

Lighting Coordinator

Tool Prepared by

PacifiCorp PM

Account Manager

Project Name, Original Audit

Construction Type, Stage

Installation Address

City, State, Zip UT 84111

Account, Meter, Rate 09223026-017 3 6

FALSE

Business Name

Address

City, State, Zip UT 84111

Contact, Title

Phone, Email 801-518-1077

Business Type

Participant is: TRUE TRUE Day A B C D E
Op Weeks/Year 52 Mon 17.0

Business Name # Holidays Closed 5 Tue 17.0

Address Wed 17.0

City, State, Zip UT 84119 On Schedule Thu 17.0

Contact Off Schedule Fri 17.0

Phone, Email 801-975-9363 Weeks On per Year Sat 0.0

# Holidays Closed Sun 0.0

Total 4,371 0 0 0 0

Attention, Phone Admin
Business Name

Address Pre-Inspect Post-Inspect

City, State, Zip UT

      Incentive        DSMC

         Offer            Update

V 070118.1
Project Cost

0.87
watts / sq. ft.

Total Allowed Wattage

sq. ft.

Other Total Project Cost

Calculation Method

Project ID

toby shaw

34,800

10/2/2018Utah Mail & Distribution Services

$10,800.00 $2,250.00

250 N 1950 W 

Retrofit Preliminary (Pre-Install)

Labor

$0.00 $13,050.00

Material

Lighting Operation Schedules

State of Utah Mail & Distri. Services

Warehouse - storage areas

cbartolini@utah.gov 0.8740,000

Conserve-A-Watt Lighting

2327 so Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley

Standard Schedule

Seasonal (optional)

Vendor Information
TRUE

Toby Shaw

Catherine Bartolini

Salt Lake City

Division of Facillities Construction & Management

tobys@cawlighting.com

Payee Information

Measure Effective Date

Incentive Should Be Addressed To: Other Information (Listed Below)

10/2/2018
(Audit Date)

Multiple SpacesSalt Lake City

Catherine Bartolini Facilities Coordinator

77249013

250 N 1950 W 

Salt Lake City

Post Office
Space Types

Participant Information (As Shown On Tax Forms)

Space Type & Size

40,000

☁

Same as Above

Account Holder Building Owner Electric User

Inspection Required

Eligibility Confirmed

iO



Exhibit A

Print Date: 4/23/2019 State Mail RMP Lighting Tool and Report (1).xlsm 1 of 1

Utah Mail & Distribution Services
Project Stage: Preliminary (Pre-Install)
Construction Type: Retrofit
Project State: UT

hrs/yr

Space W 
(Existing, 

Stipulated) Project Totals
Quantity 

(Exist/Prop)
Fixture W 

(Proposed)
Space W 

(Proposed)
% Wattage 
Reduction

kWh/yr Savings 
(Stipulated) Incentives

4,371 13,530 Typical - Retrofit 30 / 30 185 5,550 59.0% 40,129 $4,012.90
0 0 LED Instant Incentives (estimates only) 0 / 0 0 0 0.0% 0 $0.00

0 13,530 Total 30 / 30 185 5,550 59.0% 40,129 see below

0
0 4.79 yrs - SPB w/o Incentive LPD Code 0.870

(3.32 yrs - SPB w/ Incentive) LPD Existing 0.338

8,760 0.139
4,380 84% ▲ Code

Line OpSch Space Description Existing Equipment Quantity 
(Existing)

Fixture W 
(Existing, 

Stipulated)

Space W 
(Existing, 

Stipulated)
Proposed Equipment Quantity 

(Proposed)
Fixture W 

(Proposed)
Space W 

(Proposed)

% Wattage 
Reduction 

(Stipulated)

Total   kWh/yr 
Savings 

(Stipulated)
Total Incentives Notes / Fixture Parts Number

1 A WAREHOUSE Interior: Metal Halide (High/Low Bay) [1L - 400W - CWA] 30 451 13,530 LED Retrofit Kit - High/Low Bay [185W] - Int Occ 30 185 5,550 59.0% 40,129.00 $4,012.90

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Operating Schedules
A
B

C

D

17.0 (Mo), 17.0 (Tu), 17.0 (We), 17.0 (Th), 17.0 (Fr), 0.0 (Sa), 0.0 (Su), 52 wks/yr, 5 holidays

unused operating schedule

unused operating schedule

unused operating schedule

Good  (<8.0 yrs)
E
S

unused operating schedule Total Incentives
unused operating schedule

Full time (24/7) operation, no holidays

Half time (12/7) operation, no holidays
Good  (<$0.35)

Equipment Selection & Calculations

LPD Proposed$0.33 - Cost/kWh $4,012.90X

Y

Create Summary Report

Create LII Application

Create General Application

add/remove fixture rows to the table below Show/Hide Operating Schedules & ProjectTotals



Printed: 4/23/2019 State Mail RMP Lighting Tool and Report (1).xlsm 1 of 1

wattsmart.com 70118.1
Effective Date: 10/02/2018

Customer/Site Information Vendor Information Project Information
State of Utah Mail & Distri. Services Conserve-A-Watt Lighting Utah Mail & Distribution Services
Catherine Bartolini, 801-518-1077 Toby Shaw, 801-975-9363 Audit Date: 10/02/2018
cbartolini@utah.gov tobys@cawlighting.com Project Type: Retrofit

Project Stage: Preliminary (Pre-Install)
250 N 1950 W 2327 so Decker Lake Blvd
Salt Lake City, UT  84111 West Valley, UT  84119
Meter #: 77249013       Rate: 6

Electric Cost Savingsa

Total Project Incentivesa

Energy Savingsa, b Simple Paybacka

  Review this assessment report with your auditor.

  Steps for typical lighting incentives

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

  Steps for LED instant incentives

1.

14845 SW Murray Scholls Dr.
Suite 110, PMB #513
Beaverton, OR  97007

Lighting Assessment Summary

$2,726

$4,012.90

40,129

Per Year

kWh/year
Energy Savings with incentives3.3 years

Total Project Cost
$13,050.00

Lighting Project Next Steps

7.5 kW/month
Demand Reduction

a Energy savings, electric cost savings, and total project incentives are estimates only and intended solely for wattsmart Business lighting projects. Savings 
may be adjusted for heating/cooling factors based on region and space type. Incentives paid are based upon approved as-installed equipment, operating 
conditions, and project costs. 
b Energy savings shown above are estimated actual savings at the customer meter. Incentives are calculated using stipulated fixture savings of

40,129.00 kWh/yr, and a controls savings of 0.00 kWh/yr.

* Project-Level Lighting Power Density (watts per square foot): Existing (0.338)  / Code (0.870)  / Proposed (0.139)

4.8 years without incentives

If you have qualifying LED replacements, you can generate an instant incentive application using the gray button on this tab or on the Project Information 
tab, which you'll need to submit as instructed with all required supporting documentation shown on the application.

Before you start your project, submit a completed and signed general application to wattsmartbusiness@rockymountainpower.net or have your 
wattsmart Business vendor submit it. We may need to verify existing equipment through an inspection.

We provide an incentive offer letter. If you do not have a signed incentive offer letter, you will not be able to receive an incentive. Sign the incentive offer 
letter before you order or purchase equipment. 

Upgrade your lighting. 

Submit project cost documentation including invoices with a breakdown of materials and labor per the terms outlined in the incentive offer letter. A post-
installation inspection may be required.

Receive incentive check within 45 days of completion of step 4.

Incentives
$4,012.90 

31%

Net Project Cost
$9,037.10 

69%



yellow cells indicate input is required
light gray cells indicate auto-calculation based on other inputs
Red text or fields indicates an issue needing attention

Project & Participant Information

Payee Information

Vendor Information

Construction Type

Coordinator

Enter the information for the program administration personnel assigned to project coordination. efforts.

Project Costs (Must enter this information for tool to calculate pay-back)

Material: Enter the costs of all installed lighting equipment (fixtures, lamps, ballasts, controls).

Other: Enter all other applicable costs (sales tax, permit and disposal fees, equipment rentals).

Space Type and Size

Space Type: Enter the facility type for the project.  Up to five building types may be selected.
SQFT: Enter the applicable square footage for each selected space type.
LPD: Lighting Power Density is the allowed watts per square foot based on the state energy code.

Operation Schedule

# Holidays Closed: This refers to nationally observed holidays during which federal institutions are closed. 
Weeks per Year: Enter the weeks per year the facility is in operation. 
Schedule 'X': Use this schedule for 24/7 emergency lighting (i.e. exit signs).
Schedule 'Y': Use this schedule for night only lighting.

Equipment Entry:

Lighting Workbook Help & Notes

Macros must be enabled for the functions of the workbook to work properly. For further explanation, refer to the Microsoft Office 
Excel Help function.

Enter the specific details of the location for which the project is being performed. State and Rate Schedule are required to populate 
the project summary. Account information can be found on the customer utility bill as shown below.

Enter the payment recipient information. Incentive recipient can be the project's contact, the building owner or tenant, or a third-party 
trade ally.

Retrofit: Lighting equipment is installed in a pre-existing facility as an upgrade from an old lighting type to a newer more efficient 
lighting type.

Project Information Page

Exterior Only: Lighting equipment is installed in an exterior only application where interior LPD will not be affected.

Note: The lighting tool cannot be used to calculate savings or incentive for new construction or major renovation space types where 
energy code does not apply. Please contact your project coordinator for additional information.

Enter the information for the vendor involved in the project.

Customer Information Page

Labor: Enter the costs of all labor. If the project is self-installed, please provide hours of work performed and billing rate per hour. 

New Construction:  Lighting equipment installed in a newly constructed facility or in newly constructed square footage added to an 
existing facility.
Major Renovation: Lighting equipment is installed in a facility use type where the existing system will not meet Owner/Customer 
projected requirements within existing facility square footage.



Lighting Energy Savings Calculations

Lighting Demand Savings Calculations

Baseline Wattage

Project Savings Calculations

Ineligible Fixture Savings Calculations

Control Energy Savings Calculations

The savings calculation procedure is applied uniformly across all fixture combinations entered into the tool, regardless of whether the 
installed fixtures are eligible to receive incentives.

Control savings are calculated by multiplying the lighting consumption calculated above for existing or proposed fixtures by a fixed 
percentage based on the control type.  For lighting projects replacing existing controls, the net control savings are estimated by 
subtracting the existing control savings from the proposed control savings for each space/line item in the tool. No demand savings 
are calculated for lighting controls.

Operation Schedule: For each line item, select from the schedules (A, B, C, D, E, S, X, or Y) that were input on the Customer 
Information tab.
Space Description: For each line item, provide a unique identifier for the specific location of the fixtures.
Fixtures: For each line item, select an existing or proposed equipment field and then click the light bulb       icon in the column 
header. This will launch the fixture builder where you can select the applicable components, including controls, for the equipment you 
wish to add or update. Once you've added the equipment, enter the appropriate fixture quantity.

Lighting Savings Methodology

For each line in the tool (generally indicative of an individual space in a building), annual lighting savings (kWh/yr) are calculated by 
subtracting the proposed space energy use  (proposed fixture wattage multiplied by the quantity of proposed fixtures, multiplied  by 
the annual operating hours, and then dividing by 1000) from the baseline space energy use (baseline fixture wattage multiplied by 
the quantity of baseline fixtures, multiplied  by the annual operating hours, and then dividing by 1000). This is then multiplied by an 
applicable heating/cooling factor based on region and space type selections.

For each line in the tool, demand savings (kW) are calculated by subtracting the proposed space wattage (proposed fixture wattage 
multiplied by the quantity of proposed fixtures, and then dividing by 1000) from the baseline space wattage consumption (baseline 
fixture wattage multiplied by the quantity of baseline fixtures, and then dividing by 1000). The resultant kW reduction is then 
multiplied by an appropriate demand diversity factor.

The baseline wattage is generally the actual fixture wattage, except for fixtures/lamps that are regulated by federal efficacy 
standards, in which case the baseline wattage is a stipulated wattage consistent with a fixture/lamp that is minimally compliant with 
the efficacy standard.  A list of fixtures with stipulated wattages is located on the website.

The calculated lighting savings (kWh/yr) from each line in the tool are summed to determine the project savings.  Project savings are 
utilized with reported customer costs to determine the project simple payback and whether it complies with the 1 year simple payback 
cap.  The tool reports savings in cases where the project simple payback is less than one year, but ineligible for incentives because 
of the one year simple payback cap.  Project savings must be positive for the project to be eligible to receive incentives.



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Robin Burr, University of Utah  
Date: May 1, 2019 
Subject: University of Utah: Request for the Biomedical Polymers Research Building 

Lab Remodel (Non-State Funded) 
 

The University of Utah requests approval to remodel approximately 14,132 sqft of lab space on the 
first floor of the Biomedical Polymers Research Building.  The project scope includes the 
reconfiguration of this space including the conversion of some office space into lab space.  The project 
will upgrade infrastructure to address the needs for chilled water, emergency power, data, and fire 
alarm. 
 
The proposed total project budget of $6,732,366 is summarized below and will be funded through 
University of Health Sciences funds.  No State funds will be used for this project. 
 
Construction:   $4,933,402 
Soft Costs:    $1,798,964 
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET: $6,732,366 
 
 

 
 



April 17, 2019



BI
O

PO
LY

M
ER

S 
RE

SE
A

RC
H 

BU
IL

DI
N

G
 (B

PR
B)

LA
B 

RE
M

O
D

EL
 -

LE
V

EL
 1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 B

O
A

RD
 

5.
1.

19
 



PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

EE
D

 A
N

D
 B

A
C

KG
RO

UN
D

:

NE
ED

-
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

e
t 

la
b

 s
p

a
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ie

n
c
e

s
 C

a
m

p
u

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
g

ro
w

in
g

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 s

p
a

c
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

BA
CK

GR
OU

ND
-

A
 m

u
lt

i-
y
e

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i

s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 l

a
b

 s
to

c
k

 f
o

r 
o

c
c
u

p
a

n
c
y
 b

y
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
e

rs
 v

a
c
a

ti
n

g
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 5

2
1

 a
n

d
 t

o

a
d

d
re

s
s
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 g

ro
w

th
 n

e
e

d
s
:

-
2

0
1

4
: 

 B
P

R
B

 L
e

v
e

ls
 B

, 
3

, 
4

 a
n

d
 a

 p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
5

 r
e

m
o

d
e

le
d

 f
o

r 
N

e
u

ro
b

io
lo

g
y
 a

n
d

 A
n

a
to

m
y
.

-
2

0
1

7
: 

 W
in

tr
o

b
e

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 l
a

b
s
 r

e
m

o
d

e
le

d
 f

o
r 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
e

rs
 h

o
u

s
e

d
 i

n
 B

u
il

d
in

g
5

2
1

.

-
2

0
1

8
: 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 s

tu
d

y
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 f
lo

o
rs

 o
f 

B
P

R
B

 t
o

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 l

a
b

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

s
 T

 l
e

v
e

ls
 1

, 
2

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

5

-
2

0
1

9
: 

 G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 B
io

c
h

e
m

is
tr

y
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 w

a
rr

a
n

te
d

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
1

 r
e

m
o

d
e

l.



A
RE

A
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 W
O

RK
-B

PR
B 

LE
V

EL
 1

:

-

BI
OP

OL
YM

ER
S

RE
SE

AR
CH

 B
UI

LD
IN

G



PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

C
O

PE
 O

F 
W

O
RK

 –
BP

RB
 L

EV
EL

 1
:

Re
no

va
te

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y

14
,1

32
 sq

. f
t. 

on
 le

ve
l 1

:

-
Ne

w
 ca

se
w

or
k 

an
d 

fix
tu

re
s a

t L
ab

s

-
Su

bd
iv

id
ed

 la
bs

 to
 b

e 
op

en
ed

 u
p 

al
lo

w
in

g 
fo

r b
et

te
r r

es
ea

rc
h 

flo
w

.

-
Po

rt
io

ns
 o

f o
ffi

ce
 su

ite
s t

o 
be

 co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 re
se

ar
ch

 sp
ac

e.

-
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

up
gr

ad
es

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 ch

ill
ed

 w
at

er
 n

ee
ds

, e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

po
w

er
, d

at
a,

 a
nd

 fi
re

 a
la

rm



SC
H

ED
UL

E 
&

 B
UD

G
ET

:
-

SC
HE

DU
LE

-
Ap

pr
ov

al
s:

-
Bo

ar
d 

of
 T

ru
st

ee
s 

02
/1

2/
20

19
-

Bo
ar

d 
of

 R
eg

en
ts

 
03

/2
9/

20
19

-
Bu

ild
in

g 
Bo

ar
d:

 
05

/0
1/

20
19

-
De

sig
n

06
/2

01
9 

–
10

/2
01

9

-
Pe

rm
it/

Bi
d:

10
/2

01
9 

–
11

/2
01

9

-
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
12

/2
01

9 
–

11
/2

02
0

-
BU

DG
ET

-
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
$4

,9
33

,4
02

-
So

ft
 C

os
ts

$1
,7

98
,9

64

-
To

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t

$6
,7

32
,3

66





 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Mark Halverson, Weber State University 
Date: May 1, 2019 
Subject: Weber State University: Update on the Ogden Campus Outdoor Recreation 

Center (Non-State Funded) 
 

During the April 2018 meeting, the Board approved WSU to proceed with construction of a new 
16,000 sqft. outdoor recreation facility once all funds were in place.  Funding for the $6.7M project 
has been secured.  Additionally, no State funds will be requested for ongoing operation and 
maintenance.  These costs will be funded through the WSU Recreation Program. 

 
 





 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, University of Utah 
 Ben Berrett, Utah State University  
Date: May 1, 2019 
Subject: Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 

 

Attached for your review are the Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State 
University. 
 
Attachments: 
Report for U of U 
Report for USU 

 
 





 
 
 
 

Chief Facilities Officer 
 

V. Randall Turpin University Services Building, 1795 E. South Campus Dr., Rm 201, Salt Lake City, Utah 84112-9403 

 
 
 
April 19, 2019 
 
 
Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Director 
Utah State Building Board  
State Office Building Room 4110  
Salt Lake City, UT 84114 
 
Subject:  U of U Administrative Reports for the May 1, 2019 Building Board Meeting. 
 
Dear Jeff: 
 
The following is a summary of the administrative reports for the U of U for the period  
March 20, 2019 – April 17, 2019.  Please include this in the packet for the May 1, 2019. 
 
Professional Services Agreements (Page 1) 
The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 
6 Design Agreements, 11 Planning/ Study/Other Agreements. 
 
Item 10; Research Park Master Plan Update 
Perkins + Will was contracted to assist the University in planning the future development of the University’s 
Research Park. 
 
Item 12; Huntsman V Programming Phase – Pre-Construction Services 
DFCM previously authorized the University to lead the programming effort for the Huntsman Cancer V project. 
The University and DFCM then collaborated to select Layton Construction as the CM/GC for the project. The 
University issued this professional services agreement to Layton to provide pre-construction services during 
programming.  DFCM will issue the CM/GC contract to Layton. 
 
Construction Contracts (Page 2) 
The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 
0 New Space Contracts, 7 Remodeling Contracts, 2 Site Improvement Contracts. 
 
No significant items. 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 3) 
 
Increases:   
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Director  
April 19, 2019 
Page 2 
 
Decreases:  
Project 22018; Sidewalk Improvements – Mario Capecchi Drive $115,545.60 
Project 22058; Secondary Water System for Landscape Irrigation $30,055.40 
 
These transfers, totaling $145,601 cover the difference between the bid and the construction budget.  The 
amount transferred was reduced to the extent possible by removing any nonessential scope from the 
construction as well as redirecting budgets in soft cost line items. 
 
Balance: 
The balance of $645,519 will be needed to meet anticipated demands for currently authorized projects given 
the current market. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 4) 
 
Increases:   
None. 
 
Decreases: 
Project 22147; Wasatch Drive Area Road Rebuild 
This transfer of $113,738 covers the cost of completing the project under winter conditions along with the cost 
of traffic control required by the extended construction period.  The extension of time into the winter was the 
result of several major unforeseen conditions, primarily involving utilities discovered at locations different 
than had been indicated by record drawings of previous projects and potholing efforts. 
 
Balance: 
Our analysis, using the same methodology employed by DFCM, indicates that the current balance of 
$2,471,064 is adequate to complete the projects that have been authorized and does not reflect an excess 
balance. 
 
Representatives from the University of Utah will attend the Building Board meeting to address any questions 
the Board may have. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kenneth E. Nye 
Deputy Chief Facilities Officer 
University of Utah 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc:  University of Utah Trustees 
       Jim Russell, Director DFCM 
 



Page 1

Professional Service Agreements

Awarded From March 20, 2019 - April 17, 2019
Item 

Number
Project 
Number Project Name Firm Name  Project Budget  Contract 

Amount 
  Design

1 22259 SMBB Cold and Tissue Culture Room Remodel Edwards and Daniels Architects 248,444$      21,000$          
2 22280 Elevator Modernization - Two 5 Stop Interior Elevators FFKR Architects 236,468$      13,162$          
3 22282 1400 Court Water Line Replacement Talisman Civil Consultants LLC 300,000$      28,800$          
4 22297 Skaggs Biology Auditorium Update Pasker Gould Ames and Weaver Inc 1,500,000$   99,000$          
5 22304 Campus Digital Wayfinding Design Services Selbert Perkins Design Inc 47,500$        37,500$          
6 70250 BTICU Clinic Renovation HKS Architects 165,584$      15,500$          

7 22006 Golf Building Commissioning & Building Air Leakage Testing ETC Group 2,270,876$       22,170$              
8 22195 HCH Proton Therapy - Materials Testing Services Western Technologies 10,806,008$     49,970$              
9 22195 HCH Proton Therapy - Commissioning Services IMEG Corp 10,806,008$     30,050$              
10 22219 Research Park Master Plan Update Phase 1 Perkins + Will 435,368$          400,350$            
11 22225 USA - P3 Study Visioning IBI Group 177,800$          15,000$              
12 22257 Huntsman V Programming Phase - Preconstruction Services Layton Construction Company LLC 1,994,237$       20,000$              
13 22257 Huntsman V Programming Phase - Estimating Cumming Construction Management Inc 1,994,237$       15,000$              
14 22290 Health Campus North Patient Parking Structure Feasibility 

Study: Pre-construction Services
Layton Construction Company LLC 150,000$          20,000$              

15 22300 Fieldhouse Feasibility Study Edwards and Daniels Architects 21,000$            20,000$              
16 22305 Transition Planning Services Healthcare Technical Services Inc 110,000$          76,171$              
17 70251 Hope Chapel Redrock Room Study Vaughn Yribar Architecture 1,809,000$       16,900$              

                      Planning/Study/Other



Page 2

Construction Contracts

Awarded From March 20, 2019 - April 17, 2019
Item 

Number Project Number Project Name Firm Name  Project Budget  Contract Amount 

1 22005 MEB HVAC Equipment Removal - Abatement Eagle Environmental Inc 2,712,000$         29,169$                  
2 22098 HCI Office TI for HR. SOM, UUHC - HVAC Work Automated Heating and Air Cond-Mechanical 2,253,001$         13,768$                  
3 22190 Bldg 860 - L2 Dermatology Lab & Office Remodel Archer Construction 552,124$            236,175$                
4 22228 Masters of Software Design Classroom 3rd Floor Slider Construction 372,192$            199,900$                
5 22279 Bldg # 302 Allen - Bradley Control System Upgrade Harris Mountain West LLC 519,717$            387,004$                
6 22281 HCI - Cyclotron Leak Assessment - Excavation Jacobsen Construction Company 55,718$              13,618$                  
7 70192 Hospital 5 West Remodel - Flooring Installation Fox Face Inc 4,395,250$         19,650$                  

8 22173 Saratoga Springs Health Clinic - Road Development Staker Paving and Construction Company 2,800,000$         2,209,200$             
9 22252 HTW Distribution Tunnel Acme Construction Inc 600,000$            462,507$                

                     Construction - Remodeling

                      Construction - Site Improvement

                     Construction - New Space



Page 3

University Of Utah
Report Of Project Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of March 20, 2019 to April 17, 2019

PROJECT PROJECT TITLE TRANSFER DESCRIPTION FOR % OF
NUMBER AMOUNT CONTINGENCY TRANSFER CONSTR.

BUDGET
BEGINNING BALANCE 791,120.20                         

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:

22018 Sidewalk Improvements  Mario Capecchi Drive (115,545.60)                           
Cover difference between bid and 
construction budget 8.9%

22058 Secondary Water System for Landscape Irrigation (30,055.40)                          
Cover difference between bid and 
construction budget 1.2%

CURRENT BALANCE OF PROJECT RESERVE: 645,519.20                         



page 4

University Of Utah
Report Of Contingency Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of March 20, 2019 to April 17, 2019

PROJ. NO. DESCRIPTION CURRENT TOTAL % OF PROJECT
TRANSFERS TRANSFERS CONSTR. STATUS

 FROM BUDGET
CONTINGENCY

BEGINNING BALANCE 2,592,336.79

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

DECREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

NEW CONSTRUCTION
None

REMODELING

22147 Wasatch Drive Area Road Rebuild (113,738.00)     418,524.42      12.30% Construction
22089 Marriott Center for Dance Safety Improvements (7,534.55)         38,314.02        9.14% Construction

ENDING BALANCE 2,471,064.24





 
 
 

1445 Old Main Hill           Logan, UT  84322-1445            Ph: (435) 797-1146            Fax: (435) 797-0710           www.usu.edu/vpbus 

April 19,2019 
 

Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Manager  
Division of Facilities Construction 
   and Management 
State Office Building Room 4110 
PO Box 141160 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1284 
 
Dear Jeff: 
 
SUBJECT: USU Administrative Reports for the May 2019 Building Board Meeting 
 
The following is a summary of the administrative reports for USU for the period 03/22/19 to 04/19/19. 
  
Professional Contracts, 3 contracts issued (Page 1) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Construction Contracts, 8 contracts issued (Page 2) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 3) 
No projects needed funds and no projects contributed to the contingency reserve fund during this reporting 
period.  Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 4) 
No projects needed funds and one project contributed to the reserve fund during this reporting period. Based 
on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Current Delegated Projects List (Pages 5-7) 
Of USU’s 82 projects, 4 are pending, 22 are in the design/study phase, 39 are in construction, 12 are 
substantially complete and 5 are complete.  The 5 projects completed during this period were Alumni House 
Remodel IOGP-Design, SE Sidewalks & Safety Lighting, South Farm Beef Barn, South Farm New Dairy 
Barn and USUE Price Student Center Remodel-Design. 
 
Representatives from Utah State University will attend the Building Board meeting to address any questions 
the Board may have.  
    

Sincerely,       
 

       
 
David T. Cowley 

      Vice President for 
        Business and Finance 
DTC/ah 
c:  Kimberly Henrie  
    Jim Russell 



Project Name Firm Name A/E Budget Fee Amount Comments
1 SLC Campus Greenhouse Method Studio $30,000.00 $30,000.00 Design services 

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

2 South Farm Beef Barn Concrete Utah Testing & Engineering $1,725.00 $1,725.00 Materials testing
3 Alumni House Remodel Dixon Information $57,675.00 $30.00 Bulk samples

Professional Contracts
Awarded From 03/22/19 to 04/19/19

Page 1 of 7



Project Firm Name Const Budget Contract Amt Exp to Date Comments
1 Football Lockers Longhorn Locker Company $507,779.00 $485,970.00 $0.00 Install lockers
2 Airport FL-10 Remodel Raymond Construction $336,572.00 $333,130.00 $0.00 Construction services
3 South Farm Beef Barn Concrete Lundahl Building Systems $215,611.00 $215,611.00 $0.00 Construction services
4 HPER Swimming Pools Lundahl Building Systems $315,790.00 $185,068.00 $0.00 Grout work 
5 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY18 Landscape Forms $54,795.00 $18,450.00 $28,553.00 Trash Receptacles
6 700 N. Street Improvements Jacobsen Construction $1,940,905.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 CMGC construction services
7 USU Reservoir Pump Station USU Information Technology $307,362.00 $2,149.00 $0.00 Install cameras

   MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

8 Roosevelt Monument and Landscape Eagle Environmental $2,500.00 $1,778.00 $0.00 Asbestos removal 

Construction Contracts
Awarded From 03/22/19 to 04/19/19

Page 2 of 7



Total
Transfers % to %

Current To (From) Construction Completed
Project Title Transfers Contingency Budget Project Status (Paid)

BEGINNING BALANCE $533,071.76

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
   None

DECREASES FROM CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
   None

ENDING BALANCE $533,071.76

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund
03/22/19 to 04/19/19

Page 3 of 7



% of
Transfer Construction

Project Title Amount Description Budget
BEGINNING BALANCE $1,034,121.24

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   SE Sidewalk & Safety Lighting 6,026.01 Close project 0.78%

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   None

ENDING BALANCE $1,040,147.25

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity
From 03/22/19 to 04/19/19

Page 4 of 7



Project Project
Number Project Name Phase Budget

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT/IMPROVEMENT
A31325 Emergency Generator FY15 Construction 298,974           
A31333 Planning & Design FY15 Sub Completion 175,075           
A31334 Sign System FY15 Sub Completion 47,193              
A34300 VCT Tile Replacement in Hallways Construction 331,255           
A34301 Vet Science Electrical Upgrade FY16 Construction 98,753              
A36741 Planning & Design FY17 Design/Study 85,457              
A37302 South Farm New Dairy Barn  Complete 2,232,890        
A38594 Lillywhite HVAC Upgrade Sub Completion 1,846,001        
A39185 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY18 Construction 1,493,182        
A39186 Planning & Design FY18 Design/Study 175,000           
A39189 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY18 Construction 54,795              
A39190 Sign System FY18 Construction 45,662              
A39191 Classroom Upgrades FY18 Construction 183,907           
A39193 NFS Lab Ventilation Replace Design 950,154           
A39198 SE Sidewalks & Safety Lighting Complete 804,896           
A39202 Lighting Control Upgrade Construction 91,564              
A39203 Campus Mapping Sub Completion 200,000           
A39204 Bio Tech Lab Controls Construction 498,468           
A39205 NR Fire Alarm Upgrade Construction 138,418           
A39206 SDL Fire Alarm Upgrade Construction 166,101           
A39502 SLC Campus Relocation Sub Completion 5,071,274        
A40010 Education Atrium Remodel Sub Completion 421,681           
A40454 Tooele Landscape Improvements Design 395,000           
A40823 BCC Trail & Historical Bldg Sub Completion 273,998           
A41399 Technology Shop Renovation Sub Completion 178,166           
A41702 South Farm Beef Barn Complete 478,962           
A41724 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY19 Pending 1,390,966        
A41725 Planning & Design FY19 Design/Study 188,200           
A41726 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY19 Construction 149,601           

04/19/19
Current Delegated Projects List

Page 5 of 7



A41727 Concrete Replacement FY19 Construction 507,357           
A41728 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY19 Pending 55,192              
A41729 Access Control FY19 Construction 382,648           
A41730 Sign System FY19 Pending 46,009              
A41731 Classroom Upgrades FY19 Construction 230,611           
A41732 Parking Lot Paving FY19 Design 692,651           
A41733 Education Atrium Skylight Construction 691,789           
A41734 UWRL Lab 339 Upgrade Pending 93,189              
A41735 Tooele Classroom Bldg Reroof Sub Completion 161,460           
A41736 MC Library Reheat Coils Construction 45,662              
A41737 Blue Square Pedestrian Crossing Design 368,702           
A41738 Fire Sprinkling Upgrade Design 184,302           
A41739 USU Reservoir Pump Station Construction 334,408           
A41741 UWRL Hydronic Heating System Sub Completion 159,817           
A41742 MC Library Flooring Construction 183,950           
A41743 HPER Swimming Pools Construction 320,790           
A41744 Mtn. Aire to FA Irrigation Line Construction 345,803           
A41745 NFS Dairy Lab Mech Upgrade Sub Completion 995,704           
A41746 FAC Concrete Panel Repl Construction 414,884           
A41747 Rock Garden Landscape Construction 228,196           
A41748 SDL Chiller Replacement Construction 414,884           
A41801 May Swenson House Design 848,523           
A42103 SLC Campus East Entrance Design 80,000              
A42197 Motor Pool Car Wash Construction 149,881           
A42226 EVR Storm Drain Pond Construction 274,672           
A42375 TSC Student Affairs Remodel Design 30,385              
A42467 South Farm Horse Barn Construction 1,599,443        
A42468 Alumni House Remodel Construction 421,545           
A42506 CEP Dry Cooling Tower Construction 499,976           
A42872 Airport FL-10 Remodel Construction 398,090           
A42914 Institutional Residence Remodel Construction 182,625           
A43133 USU Hay Sheds Construction 190,335           
A43179 1400 N Soils Relocation Construction 307,902           
A43459 EVR Solar Array Construction 271,495           
A43528 Alumni House IOGP Remodel - Design Complete 8,200                
A43760 Welcome Center Remodel Design 714,560           
A43866 Athletic Fields Construction 1,647,381        

Page 6 of 7



A44070 600 E 500 N Roundabout Construction 102,199           
A44106 700 East Roadway 1400 - 1600 N Design 39,755              
A44106 700 N Street Improvements (NEW PROJECT) Construction 2,038,905        
A44206 Roosevelt Monument & Landscape Design 200,000           
A44248 Football Lockers (NEW PROJECT) Construction 532,417           
A44406 South Farm Beef Barn Concrete (NEW PROJECT) Construction 249,599           
A44407 SLC Campus Greenhouse (NEW PROJECT) Design 250,000           
C11781 USUE Blanding Housing Fire Safety Sub Completion 285,788           
C11931 USUE Price Fire Lane Design 461,269           
C11932 USUE Price Utility Upgrades Design 693,033           
C11934 USUE Price MCC Steam Piping Design 69,391              
C11935 USUE Price BDAC Skylight Design 322,838           
C11937 USUE Outdoor Lighting Upgrade Design 322,838           
C11953 USUE Price Student Center Remodel - Design Complete 40,236              
C11954 USUE Blanding Campus Triplex Design 311,146           
C11984 USUE Price MCC Shed Addition Design 100,000           

TOTAL (82) $38,968,029

Page 7 of 7



Utah State Building Board 
 

 
 
Gary R. Herbert    

            Governor 4110 State Office Building 
 Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 

 Phone  (801) 538-3018 
 Fax  (801) 538-3267 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To  Utah State Building Board 
From:  Jeff Reddoor 
Date:  May 1, 2019 
Subject: Administrative Report for DFCM 
Presenter: Darrell Hunting, DFCM Project Management Supervisor 
 
The following is a summary of the Administrative Report for DFCM.  This report covers the 
period from March 15, 2019 to April 15, 2019. 
 
Lease Report (Pages 1 - 2) 
No significant items 
 
Professional Services Agreements, 28 Agreements Issued (Pages 3 - 4) 
The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 
18 Design Agreements, 10 Planning/Study/Other Agreements. 
No significant items 
 
Construction Contracts, 28 Contracts Issued (Pages 5 - 6) 
The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 
2 New Space, 16 Remodeling Contracts, 4 Paving/Roofing Contracts, 6 Other 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Pages 7 - 25) 
Increases 
Increases are from budgeted contingency transfers and decrease change orders/modifications. 
 
Decreases, Capital Development 
Capital Development started period with $5,881,516, had no increases and three decreases for 
$131,056, ending with a balance of $5,750,460.  
 
Dixie State University Human Performance & Student Wellness Center  
This transfer of $75,407 covers the State’s share of change order #6.  See attached pages #8 - 11 
for details and contract summary. 
 



DFCM Administrative Reports 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Weber State University Lindquist Hall Bldg. Renovation  
This transfer of $30,528 covers the State’s share of change order #18.  See attached pages #12 - 
16 for details and contract summary 
 
Southern Utah University New Business Bldg. and Repurposed Existing Bldg.  
This transfer of $25,121 covers the State’s share of change order #11.  See attached pages #17 - 
22 for details and contract summary 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Pages 7 - 25) 
Decreases, Capital Improvement 
Capital Improvement started period with $10,258,035, had no increases totaling and multiple 
decreases totaling $66,530, ending with a balance of $10,191,505. 
 
Board of Education Bldg. Replace VAV Boxes & Sump Discharge Piping Replacements 
This transfer of $17,685 covers change order #1.  See attached pages #23 - 25 for details and 
contract summary. 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Pages 26 - 28) 
Development project reserve had no activity for the period, ending with a balance of $2,550,953.  
The Improvement project reserve fund started with a balance of $5,564,502 had multiple 
transfers in of $231,593 and four transfers from the fund of $254,053, ending with a balance of 
$5,542,042. 
 
Increases 
The increases reflect savings on projects that were transferred to Project Reserve per statute. 
 
Decreases 
The decreases are to award construction contracts that were over budget.   
  
This report also includes a total by Agency/Institution for increases and decreases to this reserve 
fund, on a rolling year basis.  We will keep this updated, so you can see who has given and 
drawn from the Project Reserve Fund over the past year.   
 
 
DDW:jr:ccn 
Attachments 
 



 

DFCM 
 
 
Division of Facilities Construction and Management
4110 State Office Building, Salt Lake City, UT 84114 
Telephone (801) 538-3017 FAX (801) 538-3267 

LEASE REPORT 
From 03/15/2019 to 04/15/2019 

No   Agency/Location   Services  Space Type Lease 
Term 

 Square Feet 
 Old        New 

  Cost/Sq. Ft.  
Old       New 

  Comment 

NEW LEASES 

1. 19-1518 Transportation
Region 4
16 E 300 S Bldg B
Monticello

Full Office 04/01/19 – 
03/31/26 

181    $16.25 New lease for 7 years. 

2. 19-1579 Agriculture
Plant and Industry
751 East 100 North
Suite 2100
Price

Full Office 5/1/2019 – 
4/30/2026 

  991  $6.05 New lease for 7 years. 

AMENDMENTS 

1. 15-1230(1) National Guard
CFMO
Wendover Airport
Building 807-B, PO Box 159
345 Airport Apron
Wendover

Full Office 11/1/2019- 
10/31/2024 

3,775       4,208 $8.00      $8.50 Renew lease for 5 years. 

2. 15-1231(1) National Guard
CFMO
Wendover Airport
Building 835-B, PO Box 159

Full Hangar 11/1/2019- 
10/31/2024 

20,000       $0.90      $0.97 Renew lease for 5 years. 

1



 

DFCM 
 
 
Division of Facilities Construction and Management
4110 State Office Building, Salt Lake City, UT 84114 
Telephone (801) 538-3017 FAX (801) 538-3267 

LEASE REPORT 
From 03/15/2019 to 04/15/2019 

No   Agency/Location   Services  Space Type Lease 
Term 

 Square Feet 
 Old        New 

  Cost/Sq. Ft.  
Old       New 

  Comment 

345 Airport Apron 
Wendover 

3. 05-1311 (10) Human Services
Child & Family Services
2655 South Lake Erie Drive
West Valley City

Full Office 7/1/2020- 
6/30/2026 

18,623 $20.70        $21.11 Renew lease for 6 years. 

4. 97-1749 (6) Public Safety
Utah Highway Patrol
Wendover Blvd. and 9th Street
Room B24
Wendover

Full Office 7/1/2019- 
6/30/2024 

754 $11.50        $11.60 Renew lease for 5 years. 

5. 11-0636 (2) Public Safety
Driver License
468 East 300 South
Kanab

Full Office 3/1/2019- 
6/30/2024 

877      926 $17.00        $17.43 Renew lease for 5 years. 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28


	May 2019 BB Agenda
	1 Approval of Minutes from the April 3, 2019 Building Board Meeting
	2 DFCM: State Facility Energy Efficiency Fund Loan Request for the State Mail and
 Distribution Services Warehouse Lighting Upgrade
	3 University of Utah: Request for the Biomedical Polymers Research Building Lab
 Remodel (Non-State Funded)
	4 Weber State University: Update on the Ogden Campus Outdoor Recreation Center
 (Non-State Funded)
	5 Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University
	6 Administrative Report for DFCM



